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MINUTES OF THE KENT COUNTY LEVY COURT 
REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

KENT COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLEX 
555 BAY ROAD, DOVER, DE 

LEVY COURT CHAMBER, ROOM 203 
TUESDAY, JUNE 27,2017 

Call to Order 

The Regular Business meeting of the Kent County Levy Court was called to order 
at 7:00p.m. by President Banta. 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 

The Invocation was led by Mr. Banta and the Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mr. 
Buckson. 

Moment of Silence for our Troops 

A moment of silence was observed for our Troops and led by Mr. Sweeney. 

Roll call and Determination of Quorum 

Allan F. Angel 
Eric L. Buckson 
James E. Hosfelt, Jr. 
Glen M. Howell 
Terry L. Pepper 
George W. Sweeney, Sr. 
P. Brooks Banta 

Commissioner 
Commissioner 
Commissioner 
Commissioner - Absent 
Vice President - Absent 
Commissioner 
President 

There are five (5) Commissioners and two (2) absent at Roll Call. 

Adoption of Agenda 

Motion was made by Mr. Sweeney; seconded by Mr. Angel; carried by roll call 

vote five (5) yeas; two (2) absent to adopt the Agenda. 
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Consent Agenda 17-10 

Items on the Consent Agenda are considered routine and/or non-controversial 
and will be acted upon by a single roll call vote of the Levy Court. There will be 
no separate discussion of these items unless a Commissioner so requests, in which 
event the item(s) shall be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered 
separately. 
• Levy Court Business Meeting Minutes of Tuesday, June 13, 2017 
Items from June 20, 2017 Committee Meetings: 

• Kent County Recreation Center Monthly Change Order Report 
• Training Center Fee Schedule 
• Addition to Policy 22 to Address Uniform Guidance for Federal Awards

Proposed Kent County Levy Court Policy P17-2 
• Kent County Levy Court Administration Building -Air Conditioning 

Compressor Replacement - Emergency Procurement for Division of 
Facilities Management 

Motion by Mr. Angel to approve Consent Agenda 17-10; seconded by Mr. 
Sweeney; carried by roll call vote five (5) yeas; two (2) absent. 

PRESENTATIONS 

1. Employee of the Month- July 2017 

Lorri Tanaka read the following into the record: 

Kent County Department Heads have selected Stella J. Padilla from the 
Department ofPublic Works as the July 2017 Employee ofthe Month. 

Stella has been a Kent County employee since March 2002 and serves as 
Laboratory Technician II in the Laboratory section of the Division of Wastewater 
Facilities. Her primary duties include daily wastewater sample collection and 
evaluation of test results for optimization of plant operations. Stella has more than 
20 years of experience in wastewater operations and holds a Class III Wastewater 
Facilities Operator license issued by the State of Delaware. 

Stella is praised by supervisors for her ability to accurately analyze sample data 
and maintain quality control. She has superior knowledge of sampling techniques, 
testing equipment, and the County's laboratory processes. Over the years Stella 
has remained dedicated to the environmental field including serving in leadership 
positions with the Water & Waste Operators Association. 

According to Public Works Director Andrew Jakubowitch, "Stella is another fine 
example of the high quality staff we have working at the Regional Resource 
Recovery Facility. In addition to performing her duties as a laboratory technician, 
she recently stepped up to provide assistance in operations when other licensed 
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staff was unavailable after one retired and another sustained a work related injury. 
On multiple occasions she volunteered to fill in vacant operator shifts to prevent 
operators from working a triple shift. This required her to work on her scheduled 
days off, or to work a double shift to assist the operators." 

Congratulations Stella on a job well done! Stella resides in Commissioner 
Banta's and Commissioner Pepper's districts. 

Stella was met down front by the Commissioners for the presentation and 
congratulatory remarks. 

INTRODUCTIONS 

Allan Kujala announced there were four new employees scheduled for 
introduction this evening, one with the Office of the Kent County Sheriff and 
three with the Department of Public Safety. 

Jason Mollohan introduced Deputy Kenneth A. Anderson, Sr. "He actually 
started with us on June 12th. I can definitely say he hit the ground running and he 
has been a great asset to the department since he arrived." Deputy Anderson 
comes to Kent County Levy Court as a retired law enforcement officer from the 
Delaware State Police with over 27 years of experience. 

Deputy Anderson: I just want to say, it is an honor being hired by the County. It 
was back in November, right after I left the State Police I made contact Sheriff 
Mollohan and kind of was wondering if there was any possible openings in the 
Sheriffs Department; he advised me that there wasn't but had me send my 
resume to hold on to just in case there was an opening that came up. 
Fortunately for me an opening did come up mid-May, he contacted me, came in 
for an interview and I'm here. I am very grateful for everything he has done for 
me. 

Mr. Banta: We are certainly glad to have you on board here. 

Mr. Buckson: Welcome aboard, glad you are here, I appreciate you. You are a 
tough act to follow. 

Colin Faulkner: As you can see, I like to save them up before I come here. I have 
three paramedics I'd like to introduce tonight. First is Gabby Gathers, Nick 
Labrie and Greg Shulties to my right. 

Gabby was hired June 6, 2016 as a Paramedic I in the Department of Public 
Safety - Emergency Medical Services Division. She most recently worked as a 
Lifeguard for Hockessin Athletic Club. Gabby received her Associates in 
Applied Science- EMT Paramedic from Delaware Technical & Community 



4 06/27/17 

College. In partnership with Del Tech, Gabby received partial tuition 
reimbursement from Kent County Levy Court. Gabby resides in New Castle 
County. 

Nick was hired April 10, 2017 as a Paramedic I in the Department of Public 
Safety- Emergency Medical Services Division. He most recently worked as a 
Paramedic for Kent/Queen Anne's Rescue Squad in Chestertown, MD. He 
continues to assist Queen Anne's County and Caroline County Department of 
Emergency Services in Maryland. Prior to that Joseph (Nick) worked as a Public 
Safety Dispatcher for Queen Anne's County. He brings with him over 13 years of 
emergency medical knowledge and experience. Nick resides in Church Hill, 
Maryland. 

Greg was hired June 13, 2016 as a Paramedic I in the Department of Public Safety 
-Emergency Medical Services Division. Greg most recently worked for Camden
Wyoming Fire Company as an EMT/Firefighter and previously worked for 
Magnolia Volunteer Fire Company as an EMT/Firefighter. Prior to that he worked 
as a Seasonal Park Ranger for the State of Delaware. Greg brings with him over 7 
years of emergency medical services experience. Greg resides in Commissioners 
Howell's and Pepper's districts. 

Nick: I'd just like to say I appreciate the opportunity; it's been great so far. I like 
working in Delaware, I've looked forward to working here for some years now. I 
appreciate it, thanks. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Welcome aboard, we certainly appreciate the fact that you're here 
and you chose Kent County to serve in. We have a great paramedic program, 
second to none and I know that first hand so we appreciate you being here. 

Gabby: Just like Nick, I appreciate the opportunity to work in Kent County. I 
have been here for almost a year now and I still love it, coming into work. 

Mr. Banta: Gabby, we are glad you're here. 

Mr. Sweeney: Welcome aboard, you are one of our scholarship program 
recipients, so congratulations for that. Welcome aboard, glad to have you. 

Greg: I guess I'll be last. With the same things these other two fine paramedics 
said, appreciate the opportunity. I worked at the Camden-Wyoming Fire 
Company for 10 years before I came to the County and got to work side-by-side 
with some of the best paramedics I've ever met. They finally talked me into 
getting my paramedic education and I'm glad I did. I have been here for a little 
over a year and enjoyed every bit of it. Thank you for the opportunity. 

Mr. Banta: Gregory, glad to have you on board. 
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Mr. Angel: Welcome aboard. We have some of the finest paramedics, not in the 
County but in the whole State right here. You all make a great team and under 
Chief Faulkner; I am sure you'll do well. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

Sarah Keifer stated these Public Hearings are conducted for the purpose of giving 
the citizens of Kent County the opportunity to present testimony on the 
application and ordinances that are before the Levy Court. Everyone will have an 
opportunity to speak. All statements will be made from the podium at the front of 
the room. For the record, please give your name and address. Copies of any 
written statements or exhibits used during the hearing should be provided to the 
Clerk of the Peace for identification and inclusion in the record for that item. 

For each application before the Levy Court, the President will introduce the 
application; 

The Levy Court will then receive testimony from all of those in favor; 

Testimony will then be received from those who may be opposed. 

After everyone has had an opportunity to speak, the hearing on the application 
will be closed and the Levy Court will then take what action it deems appropriate. 
Levy Court's decision will be based upon public hearing testimony received at 
this meeting as well as a recommendation report submitted to the Levy Court by 
The Regional Planning Commission. I would ask that that recommendation be 
included by reference in the permanent record of the meeting established by the 
Clerk of the Peace. 

The Public Hearing Notice of this meeting was published in the June 9, 2017 
edition ofthe Delaware State News. 

PETITION FOR CONDITIONAL USE REQUIRING SITE PLAN 
APPROVAL 

Mr. Angel: 
1. Application# I Name: CS-17-061 Sharp Energy, Inc.; Applicant & 
Owner: Sharp Energy, Inc.; Zoning District I Proposed Use: BG (General 
Business) I New Building & Site Design for Existing Office with Gas Dispensers 
& Outdoor Storage; Area & Location I ID#: 1. 934 ± acres located on the west side 
ofN. DuPont Hwy. (US Rt. 13) approx. 950' south of Twin Oaks Dr., southeast 
of Cheswold I LC-00-046.00-01-32.00-000 

Ms. Keifer: This is a proposal to redevelop an existing site. The site is just under 
two acres on the west side of Route 13, just south of Twin Oaks Drive, southeast 
of Cheswold. The Planning Commission took testimony on this application at 
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their June 1st hearing and at their June 8th business meeting voted unanimously to 
recommend conditional approval. 

QUESTIONS -None 

Public Hearing is Open on Application CS-17-06 

IN FAVOR 

Bob MacLeish, 859 Golf Links Lane, Magnolia, DE: I am with Lighthouse 
Construction. On behalf of Sharp Energy we are here tonight to ask for 
conditional use approval of a redevelopment site that they presently occupy just 
north of Dover and south of Cheswold. 

Austin Cox: 5011 N. DuPont Highway, Dover, DE: Sharp Energy has been 
leasing this facility for over 15 years. In December we decided to buy the project 
and buy the property adjacent to that. We are going to be building a facility that 
is approximately double the size of what we have now. We will be housing about 
double the employees in the next two to five years as we go. We have auto gas 
now at the facility but we do not have an island or a canopy. What we'd like to do 
is have a proper island and a canopy covering the pumps so when people come 
they can stay out of the weather. The facility has been in disrepair for many 
years. We've taken a lot of time and effort to redesign the property and put it in 
the condition and build a facility that our employees will be proud of and our 
customers will enjoy coming to when they come to visit us. The facility will be 
our administrative building; the president has his office there. We built one in 
Georgetown, Delaware last year and it is sort of modeled in the same fashion. We 
take pride in what we do here at Sharp Energy. We want to make sure that the 
facilities that we have are going to be around a long time and it is something the 
community can be proud o£ Hopefully, with your consideration we can move 
forward and start the project. 

Mr. Sweeney: The property in question, is right next to Cross Roads Church? 
And then the next property north, which is the Sharp Energy Building that 
currently exists? 

Mr. MacLeish: That is correct. 

Mr. Sweeney: That property right next to Cross Roads is a blighted property so it 
will be good to see that renovated. 

Mr. MacLeish: Sean Goodric who is the Architect of record and Chris Mondoro 
who is the Civil Engineer for the site. We have reviewed the comments from the 
Regional Planning Recommendation and their approval and we agree with 
everything that's in that report; the only exception is there's a recommendation 
related to changing and adding some modifications to the north end of the 
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building. When Chris Mondoro met with Chris Conley, and he kind of explained 
to him it wasn't really anything significant they were looking for, just to 
something to kind of balance the building out, a pattern. Chris brought this back 
and talked with our team. Chris Conley also told Chris that he could ask that that 
not be included as part of our request for approval here tonight. We are making 
that request. Sharp internally, along with the architectural team have discussed 
some different options; we've tried to review them in modifying the plan. We are 
asking that architectural component not be made a part of the approval. Del-Dot, 
when we were developing this site, if you look there's presently two entrances, a 
north and a south, they ask that we eliminate one of them and move the entrance 
to the north, which we did. As every business does, they try to identify 
themselves so that their customers, no matter where they are, can identify with, 
"Oh, that's a Sharp Building; this is where we are going to come and get our 
energy needs." So they took that, the aesthetic attention, particularly with the 
change in the entrances, and they want to make the main public entrance of the 
building at the south end, east of the facade which as you can see they have a 
special truss there as well as a portico that comes out that kind of identifies that 
main entrance for your customers coming in. That way with the folks coming in 
that are not familiar with the site, they'll be able to see that's the entrance for them 
to enter. We are afraid if we add to the north end of the building we may create 
some confusion and hesitation as they come off the highway and there's not much 
of a de-excel as you come into there with the traffic that runs along the highway. 
The other part is, Sharp Energy feels very strongly that an intentionally organized 
facade that is both symmetrical and visually weighted toward the public entrance 
was absolutely necessary despite the limitations to the site circulation that are a 
result ofthe Del-Dot entrance requirements that we're trying to adhere to. Sharp 
has spent a significant amount of time and energy developing a facility design that 
spoke to what a customer and employee could expect from Sharp Energy. The 
branding is of value and an experience that Sharp Energy wants to provide to its 
customers that they can expect to receive every single time that they interact at 
any Sharp Energy Facility. The more the facilities are identified and can deliver 
on that promise the stronger that brand value becomes. At its core, the brand 
promise will define Sharp Energy's entire business and touch every aspect of the 
company. The main facade of the building embodies the branding of the owner's 
business and they'd like to try and maintain that. To date we've received approval 
from the Kent Conservation District on our Stormwater, the Delaware State Fire 
Marshall for the site, the NOI from the DNREC, and we are presently submitted 
to Del-Dot and hope to hear back from them by the end of this month. 

Mr. Angel: This was mentioned by RPC as an Army Barracks; this is no way 
near an Army Barracks that I recall. If it was, I wish I had one like this. In my 
days of roofing and some small construction work I was always told that any time 
you add something to a roofline it adds the possibility for more leaks, which 
includes a dormer. I am not in favor of the dormer; I am also not in favor of 
architectural styling for this. If we would have done architectural styling in and 
around the City of Dover, or this building I am sure it would have changed 
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greatly. The fact is, we have to change with the times and what you all are trying 
to do now is a futuristic type of building for people to fill up and get propane, so I 
see this as a great start. I know you have one of these in Georgetown; I'd like to 
see a couple of these in our County just to give you my feelings. 

IN OPPOSTION- None 

Public Hearing is Closed on Application CS-17 -06 

Mr. Angel: I Move to approve CS-17-06, no dormers. RPC unanimously voted 
on this; no opposition, and the fact is they are going to be adding employees over 
the next two to five years and that is a good thing. Economic development is 
what we want, for companies to grow and strive in Kent County and I see this as a 
positive; seconded by Mr. Sweeney. 

Mr. Buckson: Just want to clarify, the term "no dormers." Is that clearly 
identified what is and is not to be included? 

Ms. Keifer: I think, perhaps for clarity the Levy Court simply wants to strike 
Condition B as proposed by the RPC, so just striking that would ... 

Mr. Angel: Fine, strike B. 

Mr. Buckson: While I appreciate Staff and their concern at times, it's warranted. 
I visited a site in Virginia, it was a Wendy's; it was a brick house and they had a 
Wendy's inside, it looked quite nice. So, I'm not opposed to recommendations, 
my understanding is this is a brand, a specific type of model, similar to one they 
had down south. I am not opposed to the amendment, going back and striking B. 

Roll Call: 

Mr. Angel: Yes, as per my motion. 

Mr. Buckson: Yes, based on the testimony of the applicant and the Regional 
Planning Commissions unanimous decision and no public opposition. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Yes. 

Mr. Sweeney: Yes, for all reasons stated as well as Staff recommendation. 

Mr. Banta: Based on the conditional approval by Regional Planning Commission 
and it's certainly a permitted use and no opposition tonight I vote yes. 

Roll Call reveals five (5) yeas; two (2) absent. Application LC-17-06 has been 
approved. 



9 06/27117 

PETITIONS TO AMEND COMPREHENSIVE PLAN MAP AND ZONING 
MAP 

Mr. Buckson: 
1. Ordinance LC17-13, An Ordinance to amend the Comprehensive Plan 

Map Designation and the Official Zoning Map of Kent County, 
Delaware pursuant to the provisions of Kent County Code, Vol. II, 
Chapter 205 Zoning, Article III, Section 205-8 and Section 205-9, and 
Article XXVIII (changes and amendments) effective December 01, 
2000, as amended. (Reference: Application No. CZ-17-07; 
Applicants & Owners: Robert C. & Catherine P. Murphy; Proposed 
Zoning District: BG (General Business); Area & Location I ID#: 25.35± 
acres on east side ofBay Rod (DE Rt. 1), 2,195+ ft. southeast ofthe 
intersection with Milford Neck Road (Co. Rd. 120), southeast of Frederica 
I MD-00-152.00-01-22.00-000 & MD-00-152.00-01-23.00-000) 

Ms. Keifer: Ordinance LC 17-13 is a proposal to amend the zoning map and the 
comprehensive plan map from AC Agricultural Conservation Low Density 
Residential to BG General Business Highway Commercial. The site is just over 
25 acres on the east side of Route 1, southeast of the intersection with Milford 
Neck Road, just southeast of Frederica, outside the Growth Zone Overlay. The 
Regional Planning Commission took testimony on this application at their June 
1st hearing and at their June 8th business meeting voted to recommend approval, 
they cited the opportunity for economic development in the area. 

Public Hearing is Open on Ordinance LC17 -13 

IN FAVOR 

Gregg Moore, Becker Morgan Group, 309 South Governors Avenue, Dover, DE: 
I represent the Murphy Family. We think there's a serious change in character in 
the neighborhood that's occurred in this zone. There is nearly $170 million worth 
of infrastructure improvements that have occurred in this corridor; unprecedented 
in Kent County for this period of time. There's a number of Del-Dot projects 
which are new infrastructure designed to allow for safe transport in and around 
Route 1. One warning I will say is that, many of these improvements are actually 
either under construction or not finished, so there's many, many traffic changes 
that are occurring along this corridor and I would expect to be hearing from some 
neighbors that are being effecting by those conditions. Once these improvements 
are finished and the changes are all done I think you'll see a great improvement on 
traffic here. First project is Little Heaven, $80 million; a huge project under 
construction, many changes. Just south of that is South, or excuse me North 
Frederica, an interchange that's been completed and directed traffic directly into 
Frederica safely. Just south of that is the South Frederica interchange which is 
under construction and about half way done, scheduled to be finished at the end of 
this year. Next to that is the Regional Sports Complex which is finished and in 



10 06/27/17 

operation and you know that very well. This is actually a graphic aerial of the 
South Frederica interchange and all of the work along Route 1 on both sides is 
demonstrating the under construction South Frederica interchange. The change in 
character of the neighborhood there is represented both by the Regional Sports 
Complex and the infrastructure of the South Frederica interchange. You can see 
that, in that arrow, you can see the location of the Murphy property just south of 
the Sports Complex right along Route 1 and right in this neighborhood. Moving 
farther south, Thompsonville which is finished, finished up last year; it is being 
used by the Sports Complex for safe passage. Again, that's a temporary traffic 
move sending folks to the Thompsonville interchange to allow safe passage back 
north. That will cease at the end of this year when Del-Dot opens up the overpass 
for South Frederica. You can see the completed overpass at Thompsonville. Just 
a location map, the Murphy property's actually in the center and we want to just 
show you some of the adjacent zonings. You can see that there's considerable 
amount of both BG and Industrial and other commercial zones on both sides of 
Route 1. And I stress on both sides of Route 1, on the west side as well as the east 
side. There's about an equal distribution; perhaps a little bit more on the west side 
but it's very common for commercial zoning to be located on both sides of a 
major interchange and a major road like Route 1. Of course, change in character 
of the neighborhood, again with both the infrastructure for the roads and the 
Sports Complex significantly affecting this neighborhood. Sewer; another 
infrastructure project that's been commencing in this neighborhood. Sewer has 
been offered to this area and the blue actually shows what areas are being 
"sewered." This is a new project by your Public Works Department; the lands of 
Murphy is part of that. The contract user of Delaware Turf, and I say contract 
user meaning it is not in the district but it is using that sewer infrastructure. The 
key point here is, that the pump station is on property directly adjacent to Mr. 
Murphy's property and was purchased by Kent County to allow for that pump 
station and that infrastructure to commence. Just a photograph of that 
construction, the actual location of that pump station and that construction is 
commencing nicely; another change in character of the neighborhood and major 
infrastructure project affecting this entire neighborhood. With that I'll be glad to 
answer any questions you may have in terms of this rezoning. 

Anne Cain, 77 Birmingham Court, Felton, DE: The State of Delaware and Kent 
County have set a precedent in the ruling by Governor Minner that there should 
be no businesses on the east side of the highway. Well, times have changed and 
the State and County approved the Sports Complex so the State of Delaware 
proffers revenues from that business. Therefore, why should our businesses be 
denied on the east side of the highway? There are already businesses on the east 
side of the highway, site of the Murphy property. The Sports Complex brings 
families to events at the complex and this generates the need for businesses to 
provide food and lodging. Therefore, businesses are necessary on the east side of 
the highway to provide this need to the families who come and the athletes. As a 
resident of Kent County I support this need and welcome newcomers to our State 
and County and I am in support of the Murphy Property. Thank you. 
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Mayor William Glanden, 116 South Market Street, Frederica, DE: We are here 

to lend our support for the Town of Frederica, supporting the Murphy project, 

well the whole project out there anyhow. It's going to be beneficial to my town; 

it's going to help the area grow; it's going to help the Sports Complex grow. I've 

been out there several weekends here in the past couple of weeks; we take the 

ambulance out there and we also take a fire truck out to show our support for 

them with the Fire Company. More than one person comes up to me and asks 

where do they get something to eat. I tell them there's only one or two places 

around unless they want to go all the way back to Dover or Milford. We need to 

start getting stuff growed around there so that people can have stuff. Right now 

it's just kind of a blank area. Like I said, the town is supporting the growth out 

there and we would greatly appreciate it if you guys would take this under 
consideration. Thank you. 

Mr. Angel: When you say the Town of Frederica, you're also including the Fire 

Company here which I think you are a member of too, correct? 

Mayor Glanden: I am a member of the Fire Company, yes sir. 

Mr. Angel: I just wanted it on the record, thank you. 

Robert Roth, 271 Barefoot Lane, Frederica, DE: I've been a resident of 

Frederica now for almost 10 years; I retired out of the Air Force Base and made 

my home in Frederica. All I've seen since I've been there is growth. As a fire 

fighter there, as well as an EMT with Mayor Glanden we see the need for more 

businesses and for more growth. It's going to do nothing but benefit the town and 

the area with jobs and infrastructure. Thank you. 

Christa Light, 227 Barefoot Lane, Frederica, DE: My family and I are 

transplants from Baltimore, MD; we were lifelong residents, we all grew up there. 

We had friends who lived over here in Kent County and we use to come and visit 

quite often. Things being what they were becoming in Baltimore it was more and 

more appealing to us over here. We bought a house; we chose Kent County and 

we're close to Frederica and when we ride through there it's a little bit depressing 

because it seems like there's a lot of buildings in disrepair, there's kids hanging 

out on the streets sometimes. When we were in Baltimore, my husband, he had a 

karate program, self-defense program, he was a math teacher, he has since retired 

but he's also a tutor and I ran art programs over there. At this point I am teaching 

at Mispillion Art, I am spearheading something at Bowers Beach for the arts, for 

the appreciation and preservation of the spirit and character of Bowers Beach. 

Before we moved over here we visited quite often and we felt like going through 

Frederica there was a need for something .... that could help a lot of people, 

encompass a lot of people, bring families together, help having the kids have, you 

know, something to do, maybe have a place where it would be like a family 

resource center and there would be many different things that the kids could do. 
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Well, unfortunately we weren't able to do that but during the course of things I 
met Bob Murphy over the phone; I think it was as Friends of the DE Turf, it was 
Friends of the Soccer Complex. My husband and I have just been really involved 
in our community our whole lives so of course we were interested and I said to 
one of my friends that lived over here, oh, you'r~ going to get a soccer complex. 
And she said, yeah, this is Kent County, not in our lifetime. Well, we have a 
soccer complex. They built it and they came. So, now that they came, what are 
we going to do with them? We want to show them some Delaware Hospitality, 
some local flavor, we want to make them comfortable, we want to give them 
someplace to eat, places to do other things with their families. It isn't just the 
people who come to the soccer tournaments and everything; it's for the residents 
of Frederica itself. If we have other attractions there, those will be, we'll have 
things where families can be together, places where young people and older 
people can get jobs. Our daughter is getting ready to start her second year 
teaching at Lake Forest East Elementary School and our grandchildren both live 
in Frederica, as well. So of course we're interested in seeing these things happen. 
I understand the, believe me, I live in Little Heaven, I understand the construction 
problem with the road, it is kind of nightmarish, however, realizing that with 
growth comes some pain sometimes, and it is a temporary problem. I think with 
the rezoning we can do a permanent solution for the community and our visitors 
that come from out of town. I think it is very important and I am going to try to 
look at my notes and see if I forgot anything. Also, one of the things that I think 
is, that when we have these little parcels that we can develop there's a great 
opportunity for incubator businesses; maybe people who want to go together and 
buy a piece of land or put a building on it and see if it is going to work. I know in 
Milford they have pop up businesses sometimes and people can, they have, like 
rent for three months or something that's free. People can just kind of try out their 
idea and see if it's going to go; there's an opportunity for all of these things. It's 
not just, I mean it will be something that the community has year round. Even 
though the sports fields, those people may come and go, it will be there for the use 
ofthe community year round. I just think it's a great idea. When Bob and I first 
met, my husband and I had this idea, we moved over here, I met Bob and it was 
just like our visions were for the same for this area, what we wanted to see and 
how we felt that these changes would be beneficial. So that's all. 

Mr. Banta: Last Monday night, between 6 and 6:30 were you in Little Heaven? 
The reason I'm asking you is, I was there and they must have had 10" of rain in 
the matter of 35 minutes. 

Mrs. Light: Actually we weren't, we were ... where were we? 

Mr. Banta: You were under water, I'll tell you that. 

Walter Zettlemoyer, 1212 Rising Sun Road, Camden-Wyoming, DE: I am here 
to support Mr. Murphy and his endeavors of improving the area for the people 
that come to the Sports Complex. Without the support around that Sports 
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Complex it's going to take away from the number of people who are starting to 
come on a regular basis. I have friends who have children and traveling field 
hockey and you'd be amazed at the number of people that drive from here to 
Jersey or down to Virginia to take the kids to these traveling sports teams. But, as 
a business man I would like to see it. I still own property; I lived in Milford Neck 
for, since the mid - early 80's up until about 10 years ago. Traffic ran me out. 
But now their fixing the traffic problem; but no, I'm not going to move back there. 
I have a house there that is a rental; my tenant tells me he can hear the whistles 
blowing from the Sports Complex. He's not complaining though. I do support it. 
The area needs businesses to support the Turf Field and we must grow. 

Steve Martin, 1973 Bay Road, Milford, DE: This area is growing; I own roughly 
three parcels in this area. At this time, the west side of the highway over here, I 
can see, yes there's traffic issues. I'm a member of the Chamber of Commerce of 
Ocean City of Maryland. We were spending $5 million a year advertising in New 
Jersey, Pennsylvania and New York for people to come down to Ocean City and 
spend money. Why aren't we getting some of that money right here in Kent 
County? We want them to stop at businesses, spend their money, employ our 
people, on their way through to the beaches; we want to get some of that money. 
They've done a great job filling up their hotels, making sure people came to 
Ocean City, MD. We need to think that way; we need to get more businesses in 
our area. I own a business on Route 1; of course I want to see other businesses 
come here so they can thrive; this area is thriving, the traffic is being handled 
right now by Del-Dot with all the over passes, the future service roads, they're 
thinking ahead of the game. They're doing a great job to try to get rid of the 
traffic right now in this area. I think that what we need in Kent County is 
business to support that traffic; to get some money from out of state; to improve 
our economy; that's what we need to see here. That's why I think Mr. Murphy's 
property is smack dab by the Sports Complex; it could help families that are 
coming into the town, making sure there're services there so we look good right 
here in Kent County. Thank you. 

Brad Eaby, 233 Pebble Valley Drive, Dover, DE: Thank you for the opportunity 
to speak here this evening. The Sports Complex was a real accomplishment by 
Kent County. It's like a thoroughbred out there, I mean, it's a real special place 
that a lot of people and a lot of other businesses when they see its' success are 
going to try to copy it. We know that up in Middletown there's a project that was 
trying to copy it, not exactly the same, but similar concept and they're currently in 
bankruptcy. One of the things they kept telling me was that if they did this we 
have all the infrastructure around us and to an extent that's true. We have this 
special project out there, we don't want to just, hopefully, put it out to pasture and 
leave it on its' own; we need to nurture it, support it and help stay ahead of the 
competition that will surely try to copy it. I am here speaking in favor of this 
project and any, most projects that will support the infrastructure to keep people 
coming back to this facility and choosing it over others that exist or may be built 
in the future, because it has everything that they need for a top class tournament 
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experience. I wanted to also just briefly address the comp plan issue and the 
rezoning; my comment I would make with that, I think Mr. Moore did a good job 
of describing how this is really an area of change and when the comp plan was 
initially, or the last revision to it, the Sports Complex didn't exist. The Sports 
Complex now exists and it really changes the whole dynamic of the area. It kind 
of reminds me of that Subaru commercial that they have, where they have that 
couple that planned out their life, they'll get married here, they'll have kids here, 
they'll do this and as they're going down you see all the changes they face and it 
says, recalculating, recalculating. So I think, a little bit we are in a recalculating 
stage here with respect to our comp plan and rezoning to address the thing that 
exists out there, which is this great Sports Complex. Those are my comments, 
thank you. 

Mr. Banta: Mr. Eaby, I have one question for you. I don't like to assume 
anything. You're still with the Department ofTransportation? 

Mr. Eaby: I am, sir. 

Mr. Banta: And this is your professional opinion, at least at the level that you're 
in? I don't know what that is ... Are you comfortable with what the Department of 
Transportation's doing, do you think it will be successful and traffic can be 
handled in a very meaningful fashion? 

Mr. Eaby: Yeah, I think Mr. Moore touched on that very aptly. I do think that the 
grade separated interchanges, the five or six of them that are being built will 
adequately address and improve the traffic areas and create a safer environment 
along with service roads which will keep people off of the main roads as they go 
to restaurants and lodging. 

Mr. Banta: Since you're on the MPO for a number of years, can you tell me in 
about 15 words or less why is it that the MPO didn't approve this project, the 
grade separation of Frederica, why did it take five or six years to get that done? 

Mr. Eaby: So, the MPO actually did approve this project for the South Frederica 
grade separated interchange; it was actually some other governmental bodies that 
started switching the timing. The MPO stood up in favor of keeping the original 
timing, and so it took a year or two of wrangling, but we were able to at least get 
some concessions and keep the grade separated interchange for Frederica further 
up on the list. 

Mr. Banta: Was that when the Decision Lens sort of came into play? 

Mr. Eaby: That is correct, Decision Lens was adopted by the Department of 
Transportation maybe five or six years before the grade separated interchange 
issue came up and was being implemented, you know, throughout that process. 
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But yes, Decision Lens played a very big role; it changed the ranking criteria for 
the projects. 

Mr. Banta: That's the reason we have a new Secretary of Transportation. Thank 
you very much, sir. 

Scott Ward, 306 Bridgeham Avenue, Milford, DE: I am here representing my 
brother, Jeff Larimore who owns property on Route 1, that is zoned BG. We're in 
favor of this, obviously. (Sworn in) I am representing my brother who lives out 

of state that has property just south of this, that is BG, and obviously the property 
across the street from us was just rezoned, I believe by Mr. Martin recently. We 

are both in favor of it; the infrastructures in place for more businesses along there. 
We are in favor of it. 

Terry Barr, 770 Scotts Comer Road, Milford, DE: I am for it; I think we need 
more businesses around to support the Sports Complex. I have family that come 
visit every once in a while and they never can find a place to stay; hopefully we'll 

get some more lodging around the area and I'm figuring it will create a lot more 
jobs in the area. I think it will be a good thing. 

Robert Murphy, 3338 Bay Road, Milford, DE: It's been a long time, almost six 
years. I won't go into Decision Lens, all the processes that we fought, all the 
conversations that we had, basically what you heard here tonight were dreams. 
Dreams that you had; dreams that I had; dreams the citizens from Kent County 
had. I've got two neighbors here that I'd like to recognize, they're both 
businessmen, Henry and Robbie. I apologize that I've not been a better neighbor 
to them. But we are neighbors. Kent County's in a transition phase especially this 
part of Kent County. The adage, "If you build it they will come?" They've come. 

This part of Kent County's no longer a pass through place; it's a destination spot. 
There's only one thing that keeps people coming back; the fact that they are 
happy; the fact that their needs were met and the fact that they absolutely found 
something that they didn't find anywhere else in the entire country. In my talking 

to the people who've been to the Kent County Sports Complex, from the East 
Coast to the West Coast, from Canada to Florida, they say we've got one of the 
best complexes they've ever seen in the entire country. Where are the places to 
stay? Where are the places to eat? I said they're coming. You see that dirt? 
That's an over pass. Del-Dot's going to bring these people right in to the Sports 
Complex; it's happening. To my neighbors that are on the back road, who see 
nothing but traffic congestion? I feel their pain; I've been putting up with it for 20 

years. It's going to get relieved. Del-Dot's in the process of doing it. With the 
projects that are taking place between Thompsonville overpasses and Little 
Heaven, it's my belief that the overpasses and service roads that are being put in 
place will indeed take their effect and traffic will move slowly. The fact that the 
turnarounds are blocked off right now currently was a decision that was made for 
a safety factor and it's worked. Not one T -bone accident, Chick? Not one T -bone 
accident up and down Route 1 has occurred, knock on wood, pray to God no one 
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ever gets hurt on Route 1 again between the Sports Complex, because their 
activity of coming to the Sports Complex. Those turnarounds won't be blocked 
next year because the overpass will be in place and people will be able to get 
directly in and out of the Sports Complex directly. It was my dream to be a part 
of this project. President Banta, I thank you for the opportunity to be a part of this 
project; it's been one of the highlights of my life. 

John Stark, 2961 Skeeter Neck Road, Frederica, DE: I sort of came late into 
this. I was asked to stop by to see what this was like. I know what the project is 
because like I said I live down there where they're doing all the construction 
work. I just had a few questions. I'll reserve whether I am for or against, but 
there's one thing that I wanted to point out. In all the years that I've lived in this 
area, I can remember, most of you will remember also, probably 30 or 40 years 
ago, that we had all the meetings to discuss where all the growth was going to 
happen. We created the sites of Smyrna and Dover, Milford and partially 
Frederica. At that time, I made the comment that we were short sighted by 
eliminating east of Route 1 because most everybody was looking at all the marsh 
ground and Allen Angel will attest to that because it's mostly in his area that that's 
where they didn't want to make any construction on. When you come down 
Frederica down I always contended that you eliminated the Thompsonville area. 
The Thompsonville area is an area where you could do some growth but they 
eliminated it because there was no infrastructure. So, you're currently adding the 
infrastructure to help with that kind of construction. In that respects, I am 
thinking again, like most of the people were saying, if you're building it, then we 
should be using it. So, in that respects that's where I am saying I might hold on to 
it. 

IN OPPOSITION 

Alex Schmidt, 694 Milford Neck Road, Milford, DE: I'm glad to have the 
opportunity to come down and give you the opposing side from the people that 
actually live in the area and will be impacted by these changes. Before I do, I 
have a few things that I want to pass out. I've actually got seven signed testimony 
opposition from folks that weren't able to make it tonight and then I've got a little 
packet of paper that I wanted to share with you and really the first two things are 
the most critical, so I am going to hand them to you now, Mr. President. 

Mr. Banta: Thank you. Give them to the Clerk of the Peace and then she can see 
to it that we get them. 

Mr. Schmidt: Before I get started, I do want to mention that I am actually a 
licensed and practicing professional engineer, so some of the opinions that I give 
you tonight are going to be based on my professional experience. The first thing 
before I really get into anything is I want to mention now that you've gotten your 
packets in front of you, you can see that the applicant already has this piece of 
property listed for sale for 7.5 million, listed as commercial real estate. I don't 
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know about you guys, but that really gives me a sour taste in my mouth to know 
that they consider this a foregone conclusion and that they have already have 
gotten their commercial zoning. So I hope that is not the case. Again, I come 
here before you tonight to ask that you deny this application. I'd like to address 
many of the things that have been said both tonight and in the planning and 
zoning hearing that we had. The first thing that I did at the State and the County 
are encouraging development in this area. As I mentioned, I'm an engineer. I was 
one of the engineers who actually designed all of the interchanges that were listed 
up there, or I assisted in the design, so I'm going to have to scatter out of here real 
quick before some people get upset with me, but Little Heaven, South Frederica, 
the Dover Air Force Base interchange, North Frederica, and Thompsonville; I was 
involved in the design of all of those. If you're not familiar with the history, the 
need for those interchanges was determined as part of a corridor capacity 
preservation program. That's a federal program that's administered at the State 
level, what they did is, Del-Dot went through that looked at where there were 
capacity issues on the highway and where there were safety issues and they came 
up with solutions which generally were intergrade separate intersections. The 
purpose of this was not to encourage development along this highway it was to 
preserve the safety ofthe highway and preserve the capacity. And now the 
applicants coming before you to ask for permission to dump more capacity on the 
highway, basically undoing all the money the State has spent, all the time that has 
been invested in developing these programs. I want to read for you a section of 
the corridor capacity program and what they did is identified four areas basically 
by how much money should be invested in providing transportation capacity to 
these areas. The area in question that we're talking about is denoted as a 
transportation investment area for preservation. These are areas where limited 
development exists or is expected, and where farmland and natural resources, 
existing transportation facilities will be preserved through access management. 
The idea being that we get these entrances off the highway, we get all of the 
driveways off the highway, we make it safer for folks to drive through. The State 
has put a lot of money into doing this. They have actually purchased 
development rights for four of the properties just north of this one. I would 
imagine they would have purchased this one as well if the applicant wasn't hoping 
to get the 7.5 million dollars for it. So keep that in mind as we go through that 
the State has a program in place that discourages this from happening. The 
applicant mentioned that they are going to get access on Route 1, they stated they 
had a meeting with the secretary and the secretary told them they would get a 
rights-in, rights-in only. That would mean that their exit is going to have to be on 
Milford Neck road. Now if they're intending to serve the Sports Complex, that 
entrance and exit, the exit is going to have to be an entrance as well. You're not 
going to have folks going out on Route 1 going south making aU-turn and 
entering this property through a right-in on Route 1. Now from my experience, I 
worked with commercial properties on Route 1 before and Del-Dot would deny 
access in any way they possibly can. We actually had one that we did south of 
Milford, it was a nice acre property where they wanted to put a hotel and the 
developer was asking for a right-in. Del-Dot told them they could have a right-in 
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because there were existing houses on the property but they were allowed four 
residential trips per day. So that doesn't really help when you put a hotel in. And 
I'm not sure how much discussion was had regarding the number of trips that 
would be generated but I would consider any statement that a right-in would be 
allowed on Route 1 with great skepticism. Just from my engineering experience, 
I have grave concerns about whether you can actually fit a tum lane on the small 
frontage on Route 1, but hopefully that won't even be an issue because I don't 
think we should even get to that point. The question about the County 
encouraging development, a lot has been said about the County built the Sports 
Complex, so now we should allow everybody to develop in the area. I want to 
remind you that the comp plan has this as an out-of-play area, or a no growth area, 
it's outside the growth zone. It's not in the comp plan that as I mentioned to be 
commercial, it's not in the growth zone and I understand how most the residents 
understand that the turf fields are going to encourage development, but we don't 
think this is a good location for it. There's other locations that are closer to the 
sports field, especially once the overpass is completed that would better manage 
traffic and would be less impactful on the community. You have to really ask the 
question about what kind of development are the turf fields going to drive. If you 
look at other sports fields such as the sport to the beach, there's no Wawa's, 
there's no hotels anywhere around there. There hasn't been business driven to 
that area by the construction of sport to the beach. The field up in Middletown, 
that failed, that's another good example. I have two nieces that do a lot of travel 
soccer, and most of the fields that they play on are in residential areas with 
nothing, no Wawa's, no hotels, no businesses in the immediate area. And the 
other thing that you've got to consider is that there are businesses there. That 
second sheet in that packet that I handed you that lists everything in the area. 
Most of you are probably familiar with the Chicken Man right there to the south, 
there's a gas station and convenience store there, there's two Valero's within a 
couple miles, there's a hotel just south of this location, probably less than three 
miles, there's hotels in Milford, there's plenty of businesses in the area that are 
probably depending on this traffic to help them make profits. So if you go ahead 
and re-zone this to commercial and allow somebody to open a hotel or a Wawa 
here, what impact is that going to have on those other business owners? Instead 
of that, there are none of them here to speak tonight, and I think that's probably 
because they're not aware of what's going on, but I think that impact should be 
considered as well. A lot has been made of the idea that this area is changing, that 
the turf fields are here, and now this is going to become a large retail commercial 
area. It's surrounded by residences and Chris has pulled up the display that I sent 
in and I just highlighted all the residents that are in the immediate area, and then 
of course you want to put, the applicant has said he has visions ofWawa and a 
motel being there. That's completely out of character for the area. As I 
mentioned, you can see there's plenty of land to the west of the sports field that is 
available to be re-zoned commercial and developed, and I think the fact that none 
of that has been re-zoned and no petitions to re-zone it have come in, and no site 
plans have come in for the area that's commercial in that area right now, is good 
evidence that there might not be as much demand as you expect. I want to 
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mention there's a lot of people in our area that are building house or upgrading 
their houses. The resident that is directly adjacent to this property is currently 
adding on to their house. The folks behind me are building a new house. I have a 
new neighbor who purchased a twenty acre piece of land behind me that he plans 
to build a new house on. Across the street from me is a piece of property for sale 
that folks were looking at this weekend to build a new house on. There's not 
going to be a change to this area. I also want to point out that there is a family 
that lives here. In fact, the folks that are building a new house behind me, the last 
names of Stevenson's. The mother in that family grew up in the house that I live 
in now. Her son lives next door to me with his two young children. They own 
more land in that immediate area that could be passed down to those children, 
putting four generations of family all in that area, and this is all within a thousand 
feet of this entrance. Just consider that you could be breaking up a community of 
four generations of folks that don't want to live next to a Wawa or across the 
street from a hotel. In the plus comments I think it was mentioned this area was 
surrounded by natural areas and protective wildlife areas. Again, it's just 
completely out of character with what's here now, and the idea that to allow the 
businesses to come is going to change the community. I don't think that's the 
case. I think the community is just going to become resentful of what's being 
allowed and I don't thinks that's a good situation for anybody. The idea that this is 
a good location for commercial, as I mentioned, there's many other properties that 
are closer to the turf field and have better access with less impact on the 
residences, and I think those should be considered first for any sort of 
development that would want to come in here. Chris, if you could go ahead and 
move to the next slide. This is where the exit for that property would be. My 
property is actually, I own, you can see there's 3802, 3801, 37, and then 36 is a 
half-acre lot that I own that's not developed. My house is right next to that. I'm 
within a thousand feet of this. This is going to impact me every day. It's going to 
impact the people next to me every day. But what I really want to point out on 
here is that the exit to that property is mapped as wetlands. There's also a blue 
lined stream that runs through there and you're probably familiar with your code 
that requires a 100 foot buffer on the blue lined stream. They don't even have a 
100 foot wide property right there. If you were to approve this, you're effectively 
saying that the comp plan doesn't matter, you're saying the growth area doesn't 
matter, you're saying the corridor capacity preservation plan doesn't matter, you're 
saying that the environmental features on this site don't matter, you're saying that 
the buffer on the streams don't matter. There's no way that this property can 
move forward without all of these things being ignored. I just want you to 
consider the precedent that you're setting by doing that. I just want to wrap up 
real quick and I appreciate your time and Chris if you could move to the next slide 
there. This is the view of the area from my property. I actually have a hot tub in 
my back yard. I suffer from migraines really bad and other than taking 
medication every day, a hot tub is the only thing that helps. This is my view 
looking toward where that property is and this is why, me and my family moved 
here. It's quiet, it's dark, it's rural. Based on the published comp plan and zoning 
areas, we didn't have any expectation of that being changed. We understand the 
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sports field is there and we're not opposed to the sports field but we would like it 
to stay where it is. What you are trying to do is take my view like this and, Chris 
if you could go to the next slide there, this is what I am going to see every night. 
Ask yourselves if you would want that in your back yard. I thank you for your 
time and I hope you will consider everything I said. 

Mr. Banta: Alex, I have a couple of questions for you. You're still with Del-Dot, 
is that true? 

Mr. Schmidt: I work for Century Engineering ... and .... Del-Dot. 

Mr. Banta: So you were part of that process when Decision Lens came through 
and slowed us down for three years putting that South ... okay. 

Mr. Schmidt: One thing I want to mention too, that I forgot, the South Frederica 
grade separated interchange that we have? It was originally projected to go 
further down from Milford Neck Road all the way to Pritchett Road. Because of 
concerns from the community and the general belief that area was not going to be 
developed it got pulled back much farther, just past where the entrance to the 
treatment plant is. So that again establishes a precedent that there was no plan for 
development in that area. 

Mr. Banta: Secondly, for your edification, my wife and I bought a piece ofland 
just south of Smyrna a number of years ago, built a nice home on a country road 
that had a traffic count at that time was about 87 to 100 cars a day. Today, the 
Town of Smyrna took a portion south of Smyrna connected that through 13, I now 
have 10,000 cars a day in front of my house. But it doesn't bother me, it doesn't 
stop me, I still walk around, I still do my job effectively. It's cool. It's just the 
way it is. The other people are impacted, I'm impacted but you don't hear me 
complain about it, it's just a fact of life, I've got to accept it. It is what it is. I've 
still got my house, I'm still in the country, I'm still outside of Smyrna, but I now 
have 10,000 cars a day. 

Mr. Schmidt: I understand your statement as well but my concern is I'm not so 
worried about the traffic to be honest, I'm more worried about the impact that it's 
going to have on the community over time. If you allow this to be re-zoned 
what's going to stop me from coming in on your next business meeting and 
asking you to re-zone my property? And I'm going to say the same things that 
Mr. Murphy just said, hey, you guys built the sports center, give me commercial. 
I'll get an Asian massage parlor in there. And that's not what we want to happen 
to our community and we're afraid if we let that foot in the door that's what's 
going to happen. And the folks that have lived here have lived here a long time 
and don't want to see that in this area. 

Carmella Tate, 663 Milford Neck Road, Milford, DE: I live almost directly 
across the street from Alex. I just wanted to voice my concerns as well. (Sworn 
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in) My husband and I moved down to Milford Neck Road in 2003 from 
Wilmington. We were tired of traffic. Anger management up just had gotten 
much worse. Any time you have a large population civility goes out the door. 
We looked at Sussex County and decided it was too crowded there and we looked 
actively in Kent County from east to west. We chose Milford Neck Road; it 
backs up to the Penuel tract Wildlife. We love it there, we love living there, we 
love how quiet it is, we love our neighbors. We joke when we do ride around that 
every town is seven miles from the next town so it's not like you have to go very 
far to get what you need. Looking at all of this my biggest concern with this is 
Hertrich got an access off Thompsonville Road because Del-Dot didn't want them 
to keep the access that they have on Route 1. They moved Hertrich's access onto 
the new Thompsonville for entrance and exit. Why would they allow entrance 
from Route 1, or exit, which means then it's going to impact our road? That road, 
Milford Neck Road is a curve; when you get to the comer, if you want to go in the 
other direction instead of going to Route 1 you have to, there's no stop sign there 
from Milford Neck, you have to stop, inch out and make sure there's nothing 
flying around the comer there that wants to come up, up on to Pritchett. It's not a 
safe area, when you come out that little dog leg up there, we, my husband and I 
have helped people who have driven into ditches there because they were going 
too fast on the road. We take our truck down there and we help them get out. 
We've called for help for people. It happens late at night when young people are 
out drinking, they'll come that too fast and they run into the neighbors' yards or 
whatever. We've had knocks on our doors, please help us. That's not a safe place 
to put an exit or entrance for a business. I really don't believe that Del-Dot's 
going to allow that between homes, there's homes there, for access, or exiting any 
kind of business. So our main concern is that we would appreciate it if you would 
not pave paradise and put in a parking lot. We moved down here to get away 
from all of this and now here it is again. We love our little section of Kent 
County and we would like to keep it quiet. We know that things are going to 
grow but that's not a good spot. 

Alice J. Smith, 743 Milford Neck Road, Milford, DE: I've been living on 
Milford Neck Road for 23 years. It's a lovely area. We do not need any more gas 
stations, hotels, Churches, Wawas or anything else in that particular area. There's 
plenty right. .. in less than 10 minutes. Hotels, restaurants, gas stations. That's all 
I got. Thank you. 

Joseph Yonker, 476 Milford Neck Road, Milford, DE: The little finger point 
you see comes out the Milford Neck Road, I reside right next to that, I'm that little 
wooded area to the left. I concur with everything everybody said here that 
disagree with this. As I come out my driveway there's a sharp tum one way and a 
sharp tum the other way. On every occasion I come out of that tum onto the road 
there's somebody on my tail I don't see, they come around that quick. And that's 
just me; you're not talking about five or six cars coming out of a gas station or a 
hotel. But the other thing is a ditch that runs through, a drain ditch; it runs from 
that highway all the way across to Milford Neck Wildlife area to an out of the 
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waterway. I'm retired Coast Guard, Chief Marine Science Technician where I did 
police investigation and enforced the clean water act. So by a gas station being on 
that piece of property it's not IF, it's WHEN the gas spill is going to happen, it's 
going to run in the storm drain, it's going to go in that ditch, it's going to run right 
through a wildlife area into the Delaware Bay; without a doubt. It can't be 
avoided. I disagree with that property being developed. 

Lauren La Luna, 743 Milford Neck Road, Milford, DE: I'm going to come from 
a different perspective here; where we have joggers on Milford Neck Road, we 
have children who ride their bicycles, I rollerblade there with a little girl that lives 
up the road from us. We have people that walk their dogs on this road. I've seen, 
I've been in Milford for 10 years and I've seen it grow, grow, grow. And like my 
Mom shared, there's hotels in Milford, there's restaurants, you can go to 
Georgetown, go up to Dover. The thing about living in the country, I'm from 
New York, we can go somewhere and have fun and we get to drive back home on 
a quiet road and sit outside and there's nothing going on and enjoy it. Like this 
gentleman said, he didn't want to see a Wawa from his hot tub. Another hotel, gas 
station, coffee station it's really not needed. My concern is more for animals and 
children. Who spoke from Felton and Camden, three people from Frederica. It's 
not their neighborhood that's getting busted it's ours and I think if they look at the 
other side, do you want this coming through your neighborhood? No, not really. 
Yeah, business; but there's a lot of business around here. I know people from all 
the way up in Middletown all the way down in Fenwick and there's a lot going on. 
So I don't think smack dab in our road that we really need something like this. It's 
a big concern. I'm here for health reasons for my Mom and I've learned to enjoy 
Delaware, it's nice and quiet, especially to New York and, you know we don't 
have too much to worry about. That's my concerns. I am so against what these 
folks want to do. Find somewhere else, there's plenty of other places. 

Fay Yonker, 415 Milford Neck Road, Milford, DE: First, my concern of course 
is the traffic. But I think you all are aware that if you bring something it's going 
to bring more traffic out onto Route 1 taking it and in bringing it out. It's going to 
be problems. But first of all, Frederica is a small town and it really needs new 
growth. It's welcomed the Complex Center, we all have; it's a beautiful facility. 
But in years past we've had garages and eateries there in Frederica. Now they are 
closed. Now I would rather see something move into Frederica with a new Wawa 
or a hotel or something. My husband and I have traveled all 50 states and 
everywhere we've traveled when you're looking for food there's a great big sign 
that says FOOD exit such and such; hotels same thing; gas. We've got the 
overpasses coming. Why not direct that traffic into land where they can get off an 
overpass and get back on to the road. Not off of Route 1 directly and then back 
into Route 1. I mean, people have worked with us and gotten these overpasses 
because everybody, the goal is to get the people to the beach. Well, now it's, 
we're hearing about get them to the over ... get them to the Complex. It all boils 
down to what I feel, somebody wants to make money. And they want to make big 
money. Well, I feel that right there in Frederica you've got the capability of 
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putting Wawas, Cracker Barrels, hotels, Super 8s or whatever. But then my main 
concern is, like my son just spoke, that finger that comes out is behind his 
property and that is wetlands. Now I don't know, Mr. Murphy somehow has 
convinced some of the commissioners that he has a variance, I don't know how 
but I can't hardly believe that. But that is bad on the turn just like you've heard 
these people speak, there's a very sharp curve there. People come flying around, 
it may say 35 mph you're not going to stop them from going more than 35. It 
would be dangerous having them come from a Wawa, if he's only going to have, I 
heard some testimony he can only have an off exit there, come off of Route 1, but 
then he's got to have another exit going through the woodlands by the wetlands 
and coming out onto Pritchett and Milford Neck Road. It doesn't take a rocket 
scientist to figure out that's not good if you live in the area. And we all live in the 
area, we love the area. We don't want the traffic coming out that way. Please 
reconsider this and please do what is right by the majority of the residents that 
you've heard speak tonight. 

Public Hearing is Closed on LC17-13 

Mr. Buckson: Obviously tonight is one of those times where you have to earn 
your money. We spend a lot of nights here going over things that are rather 
simplistic or are not exactly impactful. But I recognize that this one not matter 
which way I turn is going to make an impact on somebody. But at the end of the 
day I have to make a decision so that's what I'm prepared to do tonight. Prior to 
doing that I want to explain why it is that I will make the decision that I will 
make, or recommendation that I will make. We have heard from property owners, 
both Mr. Murphy who lives right there and the residents in opposition of course 
who live right there also. We listened to folks who've shown up in support of the 
success of the complex, something that I've been in favor of throughout the entire 
process and voted in support of. I recognize that when the overpass and the 
complex came that this would be a part of the process and that I would deal with 
it as it came, because as I like to say it is what it is. I don't begrudge Mr. Murphy 
for wanting to develop his property the same way I wouldn't anyone else in that 
area. I'm a little disappointed that I'm seeing this show up already approved but 
that doesn't impact the decision that I have to make tonight. I just don't like that. 
It doesn't just change what the decision is that I have to make. Again I get back to 
the fact that Mr. Murphy or whomever in that area, either side has a right to come 
in and have a decision made so I support him being here tonight in his efforts to 
do what it is that he wants. I'm willing, and this is where I'll get right to the heart 
of it, I'm willing to recognize that the area in front, a section of this property is 
transitioning and I understand that, okay. But I also what to recognize some of 
the points made by Alex Schmidt who represented many of the folks in that area 
and I spend three hours today in that area talking to many folks including Mr. 
Murphy and what I recognize is that the finger, I'll call it the finger, the extension 
out onto Pritchett Road, for me is simply a no-go. I am willing to take the heat of 
the residents in that area and tell Murphy and his application and whatever that 
I'm willing to listen to a rezoning, in fact support a rezoning if they can figure out 
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a way to make it work and eliminate an entrance onto Pritchett Road. If you were 
able to go back to what Mr. Schmidt presented and you visited that area you 
recognize the complexity ofhaving an entrance there. You can rely on Del-Dot 
as you've heard in the past to say that they're going to come in and rescue us but 
they are not. They are going to build out all the way to that section which is in 
fact what he pointed out, that's a fact. It falls grossly short of where this entrance 
is which basically butts up to an intersection where residential properties have 
lived for many years. The area in front has transitioned. But a quarter mile as the 
crows fly, same old Kent County and I recognize that. So where am I going. My 
opinion, what I am asking us to do is two things. I would suggest that we go 
through a tabling and the reason that we would table it is to give the applicant an 
opportunity to come back with something that delineates a rezoning of the 
property that excludes the area that is wetlands that is, encumbers the area of Mr. 
Yonker's property and gains entrance to Pritchett and Milford Neck, which then 
introduces a multitude of individuals who would never enter into that area back 
into that area which could create a whole host of problems. When in my opinion 
is, we don't have to do that. And I understand the growth zone, I look at a 
rezoning, and I'll be done here in a second, every time I've been here I've looked 
at a pronged approach for a rezoning. I go out of my way not to allow my 
emotions to get involved, I look at the property as it stands, I look at things like 
where is it in regards to connectivity to other areas of re-zoned properties; and it 
meets that test for me. Where is it in relationship to infrastructure; it has sewer 
right there. I recognize there's infrastructure there. It falls short on the growth 
zone side of things but I didn't adopt the growth zone, the growth zone was here 
when I was elected. It seems foolish to me to ignore the millions of dollars 
invested in this Route 1 and completely ban anything that's adjacent to Route 1 
because it's out of the growth zone. It's not a logical step for me. So the growth 
zone failure doesn't impact this. So the last remaining thing that impacts me is, 
does it have road frontage, does it have the ability to support what will be brought 
to that area? It does in the front; it doesn't in the back in my opinion. And this 
corridor preservation thing? It's a nice thing to have but I don't think it should tie 
the hands I think it should have the ability to manage the entrance and exits 
enable something like this to occur without forcing the development back on 
country roads that Del-Dots not going to support. So it's not logical for me. I'll 
end with this one and I'm the one with the mic that has to make a motion. My 
motion is quite simple, I hope I didn't ramble too much; my Motion is that we 
would table. Why would we table? So that the applicant has a chance to come 
back and redirect to some what he would like to see re-zoned short of the finger. 
If the applicant wants from me, tonight to identify and draw a line in the sand I 
can do that to the best of my ability with Staffs help but essentially what it does is 
cut out that lane. That's my motion; seconded by Mr. Sweeney. 

Mr. Banta: Tabled until what period of time? 
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Mr. Buckson: I would suggest to you based on the schedule that would probably 
be up to staff, I wouldn't, we could bring it back in 30 days if there is room on the 
agenda for that. 

Ms. Keifer: I would say roughly 30 days because the Levy Court's schedule gets 

a little mixed up toward the end of summer but how about we'll bring it back as 
quickly as we can get answers. 

Mr. Banta: I think that it is important also for a situation of this magnitude and 
the numbers of people that are here, and we represent ALL the people of Kent 
County as I said in the opening prayer; we don't have a full column of 
commissioners tonight, both Mr. Pepper and Mr. Howell both are out of town and 
we can't control that, but hopefully when this is reconvened all seven will be here 

and have an opportunity to read the tape from this and then fully understand what 
we did and why we're doing it. 

Roll Call: 

Mr. Angel: Yes in tabling. 

Mr. Buckson: Yes, per my comments. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Yes, agreed. 

Mr. Sweeney: Yes, per Mr. Buckson's comments. 

Mr. Banta: Yes, in support of Commissioner Buckson's motion. 

Roll call reveals five (5) yeas; two (2) absent. 

Mr. Buckson: The question prior to folks leaving, will there be public testimony 
once again at the next meeting? 

Mr. Pepper: Because it's going to involve a revision of the application I would 

think there would be. 

Mr. Banta: So, Mr. Buckson's motion has been approved, LC 17-13 has been 

tabled until a time as set by the planning department. 

2. Ordinance LC17-14, An Ordinance to amend the Comprehensive Plan 
Map Designation and the Official Zoning Map of Kent County, Delaware 
pursuant to the provisions of Kent County Code, Vol. II, Chapter 205 
Zoning, Article III, Section 205-8 and Section 205-9, and Article XXVIII 
(changes and amendments) effective December 01, 2000, as amended. 
(Reference: Application No. CZ-17-08; Applicants & Owners: Jomak 
Properties, LLC; Proposed Zoning District: BG (General Business); 



26 06/27/17 

Area & Location I ID#: 12.383± acres (Area of petition: 8.80± acres) on 
west side ofS DuPont Hwy. (US Rt. 13) and east side of Collison Dr., 
300+ ft. north of Hopkins Cemetery Road (Co. Rd. 289), north of 
Harrington I MN-00-160.00-01-09.00-000 & MN-00-160.00-01-09.01-
000) 

Ms. Keifer: Ordinance LC17-14 is another rezoning and comprehensive plan map 
amendment request. The site is currently zoned AC (Agricultural Conservation) I 
Low Density Residential. The proposal is for BG (General Business) and 
Highway Commercial. The area of petition is just under nine acres on the west 
side of Route 13, just north of Hopkins Cemetery Road, north of Harrington, 
outside the growth zone. The Regional Planning Commission took testimony at 
their June 1st hearing and at their June 8th business meeting voted to recommend 
approval citing that the proposal is in keeping with the character of the area. 

QUESTIONS -None 

Public Hearing is Open on Ordinance LC17-14 

IN FAVOR 

John Paradee, Baird Mandalas Brockstedt: With me tonight are Michael 
Makdad who is the principal of Jomak Properties, LLC and Jamie Sechler from 
Davis, Bowen & Friedel who is the engineer for the project. I appreciate, Mr. 
President, your comments, I'll try to be as brief as possible and not regurgitate 
what was said at the planning commission. I appreciate that you have reviewed 
that testimony. I have some exhibits to present; ifl may approach and hand those 
to the Clerk. Just very briefly, I'll explain what's in the packet. The first .... the 
subsequent page is a color-coded copy of the zoning map for the area just north of 
Harrington showing the number of commercial properties zoned BG are in red 
and Industrial are in purple. The second page is an aerial photograph. The next 
two pages are two letters of support from neighbors and the last several pages are 
a letter that I wrote to the Planning Commission to address some opposition 
testimony that was presented that evening. So, without further ado I will jump 
right into it. I think you gentlemen probably recognize that the Harrington area 
and its environs is one of the fastest growing areas in Kent County. The number 
of building permits, dwellings, residences and businesses are all on the rise and 
according to Kent County records there are almost 3,000 approved building lots 
on the books in the Lake Forest School District which has not yet been built upon 
suggesting that there's a lot of opportunity for future growth in the area which we 
would certainly expect. What comes with that is heightened demand for services 
and amenities, including mini storages. So what my client is proposing to do is 
re-zone part of this property in order to accommodate a mini storage facility for 
the reason that there's simple not enough mini storage facilities in the area to 
service the demand and the letters from the residents in support evidence that. 
We believe this is an ideal location for such a relatively low intensive use; it is 
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locally situated on Route 13 which is a major arterial highway through Kent 
County near the intersection of Hopkins Cemetery Road and if you look at the 
map you can see the number of commercial zonings in the area, and it's 
significant. As I mentioned the use that we propose is a relatively low intensity 
use. Mini storage does not command a lot of traffic. According to Del-Dot's 
formula, if we build 340, which is what's proposed the average traffic count 
would be 85 vehicle trips per day; 14 per hour and mini storage averagely does 
not typically use a lot of peak hour traffic; people tend to go to their mini storage 
unit not first thing in the morning or right before dinner but on weekends or late in 
the evening, in off hours. So there would be very little traffic impact whatsoever. 
The project as imposed would have on-site sewer and water so there would be no 
demand that infrastructure and likewise mini storage entails very little demand on 
/fire or police services. I would submit respectively as I indicated at the Planning 
Commission hearing that this application satisfies the legal criteria under the 
County code for rezoning in as much as the character of the neighborhood is in 
fact changing. If you're familiar with all the growth in this corridor just north of 
Harrington, I think it's fairly evident. We believe that the use is compatible and 
consistent with other uses in the area. We would propose to provide a landscape 
are to shield views from neighboring properties and the highways and that's 
typically required when you have commercial uses abutting Residential 
Agricultural. There was some testimony at the Regional Planning Commission in 
opposition from the Collison Family, I believe there for three or four members of 
the family who testified. The late Mr. Collison and Mrs. Collison are good 
friends of mine, I respect them; very good people; strong family, but the letter that 
is in your packet I would respectfully submit evidences why their objections 
really are not credible. Frankly, I won't belabor you with all that, you can read the 
letter for yourselves. In summary, I would submit this is an area that's in 
transition, located on a major arterial highway, populated my numerous 
commercial enterprises and for that reason this property is an ideal location for a 
low intensity neighborhood commercial use such as a mini storage. The property 
would obviously provide easy access along Route 13 in an area which already 
sees a substantial amount of traffic on the boarder of a rapidly growing 
municipality without adding any additional burden on existing infrastructure. For 
all those reasons we would respectfully request your favorable consideration. I 
am happy to answer any questions you might have. 

Mr. Banta: Mr. Paradee, I had an opportunity today to visit at least two mini 
storage facilities; those were in Smyrna, one was south, just north of Cheswold. I 
did not get a chance to speak with them. I heard the numbers that you gave for 
the traffic and the numbers these folks gave me was far less than what you 
presented. They gave me numbers for night and day as well; (inaudible) there 
was going to be a lot more traffic but there was not (inaudible) as a way of 
determining what numbers are right and wrong. 
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IN OPPOSITION 

Steven Scott, 208 Collison Drive, Harrington, DE: I am here tonight to represent 
my family. I married Wayne Collison's only daughter and we live in the home 
that is adjacent to Mr. Makdad's property. Before I begin is it possible to clarify 
with Ms. Keifer what the vote of the RPS was in voting in favor of approval? 

Ms. Keifer: It was four to three. 

Mr. Scott: Four to three, okay. I did speak with one of the members of the RPC 
and he let me know that it was a difficult decision for him; it was the gentleman 
who used to be on Levy Court, has a mini storage himself? Paul Davis, yes. He 
let me know that he felt somewhat in a difficult position because if he voted not in 
favor it could be perceived as perhaps as trying to eliminate competition. I'd like 
to start by just echoing what my family wanted to make clear to Mr. Makdad 
when we were here before that he has been a very good neighbor, that we have 
never in any way had a problem with his contractors establishment being next to 
our home. It is, I think somewhere around 800 to a 1 000 feet away from our 
home. He keeps a neat place, a neat operation; it's nothing that we've ever been 
opposed to or had a problem with. So, we do though feel that changing the 
zoning of the property that it is within, I believe 200 feet or less from our home is 
a different circumstance. So we, perhaps just a little bit ofbackstory, my father
in-law sold his dairy farm many years ago, came to Harrington and began to buy 
up parcels to build what was, at one point several hundred acres of land and more 
than a dozen different parcels joined together in one continuous piece. After he 
passed away we struggled to maintain the farm and were not able to do that but 
were able to keep 23 acres roughly, there just to the north of Mr. Makdad's 
property, two different parcels, and that's where my father-in-law built his home 
that he intended to last for generations. Before the RPC meeting Mr. Paradee 
called my mother-in-law into the hallway and after 10 minutes or so I joined him 
and he was telling me he just wanted to warn my mother-in-law that if she 
opposed him that he would have to say some things to hurt her. As she was 
saying I certainly don't want to hurt you, or don't want to be hurt, I pressed Mr. 
Paradee for what that reason was and he indicated that, "Well, I'll have to tell 
them that Wayne himself tried to get his parcel next to Mr. Makdad's zoned 
commercial a long time ago." That's very true; he did try to do that. After he sold 
his dairy farm, he first bought ... he had one or two parcels at the time, but that 
was before he sold any of those, I think there was 12 or 14 homes along Hopkins 
Cemetery to the north side, before he sold any of those, certainly, before he 
decided to build his home where he did. Because he was denied the chance to 
rezone he believed that Mr. Makdad's property would not be rezoned so he chose 
to build his home that he intended to last for generations there. He could have 
later rezoned or attempted to rezone other parcels but instead he was able to buy 
what used to be Nanticoke Homes and started Beracah Homes, and that's where 
his commercial business went, to Greenwood. So me and my family would 
certainly ask that you deny approval for rezoning because it does drastically 
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change the environment of our home. My wife and I are now the second 
generation to live there. I have daughters who are in their 20's and there's 
discussions of them becoming the third generation. We have a desire to stay there 
for a long time and it is certainly something that we hoped would stay sort of the 
way that it is. To Mr. Paradee's point that this area of Harrington is ... the 
character is changing, I don't agree. I believe that there certainly is commercial 
property there, but to my knowledge there's been no change of rezoning; nothing 
has changed from any type of agricultural to business. The businesses that are 
there have been there for a long time. I used to live on Hopkins Cemetery Road 
next to the house that is between, was between my home and Makdad's 
commercial contractor's establishment; my wife's grandmother lived there in the 
middle. So, I built that home in 1999. I pass that area regularly and I don't think 
that there's been any change of character to the area. Certainly adding the mini 
storage there would bring a drastic change to the character. I did hear the 
gentleman that was standing up for Mr. Murphy to start with, who was I believe 
from Becker Morgan, talking about one of the reasons they believe the property, 
Mr. Murphy's property, should be rezoned, is that right across the street there are 
also properties that are rezoned. Here in this situation there is nothing across 13 
that is also commercial. Now I know in Mr. Paradee's letter, Mr. Davis did let me 
know and I did find out otherwise they had taken a lot of pictures of my 
contractor's establishment, so in about an equal distance from our home to where 
Mr. Makdad's contractor's establishment is to the north is a pole barn where in 
1999 when I started in the fence business my father-in-law allowed me to keep 
supplies there. I installed everything myself for a number of years and just 
operated off my cell phone; I had no office, just a small desk in my home. 
Eventually we began to take over a little bit more and more. At one point my 
father-in-law was wanting to do some things differently on his farm and he told 
me I think it would be a problem for you not to have proper zoning so this was 
when the County office was still in the building next to The Green. I went in 
wanting to buy a piece of property in Felton on the highway but it was zoned 
neighborhood business not general business. So I sat down with Mr. Petit de 
Mange in whatever his role with the County was then, and he told me how it 
could be possible, may be possible but it's challenging, but he said then, and this 
is going back, I don't have proper records, I don't know when, but it was 
sometime before the County moved to the new Complex. And he said, there is 
this thing coming called home based contractor's establishment; it will allow you 
to continue to operate but under these guidelines; never have a sign, never do 
retail business, never make it so that your neighbors are looking at your things; 
and that's how I operated. Now that Mr. Paradee and Mr. Makdad have filed a 
complaint and the Constable did come to tell me that I'm in violation I've been in 
touch with the planning office and will, as quick as I can acquire either a home 
based contractor's establishment or, based on your decision here tonight it could 
be better for me to just go ahead and rezone our property as well. We have 23 
acres there and it would be great for us to rezone; it's accessed by a private road, 
we're further off 13 than Mr. Makdad is, so if it is possible to rezone we would 
like to be rezoned as well. I have need, I am in a very competitive environment. 
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I've been in business for 17 years now. Like most businesses in Kent County, we 
are working harder for less and to go out and try to acquire a business .... a 
commercial property would put me out of business. It's certainly .. .! am okay 
operating under the guidelines of a home based contractor's establishment and if 
Mr. Paradee and Mr. Makdad are denied I'll do that immediately. If they're 
approved I am going to try for commercial, because we'd also like to increase the 
property value that we have. I wish that there's some way that we could be 
assured that Mr. Makdad was going to actually definitely put mini storage there. 
Perhaps that would make us feel better. Our family has had some concern for our 
privacy and even some concern for our safety. We have automated gates up, you 
have to have a code to get in our property; mainly perhaps piece of mind, but also 
we've had a number of people show up. Mr. Makdad's business has been a great 
neighbor because he's a small operation, there are no unknowns that go there on a 
daily basis, he is not operating a retail establishment, the people that are there we 
know, we see sometimes folks walking around but we understand, it's okay, 
they're under Mike's watch. As I understand it, if this rezoning is approved 
maybe it's going to become a mini storage, but the approval doesn't necessitate 
that. Mr. Makdad told me himself that this is going to be something that his kids 
will take care oflater; he's got three son-in-laws and one works with him and he 
mentioned that he's doing this and they'll be the ones to develop it eventually. If 
there is a way to guarantee commercial zoning my mother-in-law, my family, me 
passing this on to my children, we certainly would feel better than if it were 
anything, but as I understand it, if we rezone it, if Kent County decides to rezone 
it to commercial it could be absolutely anything and that there's really no way of 
guaranteeing what it is that comes into there. It's for those reasons that we hope 
that you would deny the application. Having said all that, if you do chose to 
approve it, I understand things change. I understand why Mr. Makdad would 
want to change it. I hope that then you would understand why I would why I also 
would want to change it so I also can become legal and increase our property 
value and be ready for whatever future growth happens. Thank you for your time. 

Public Hearing is Closed on Ordinance LC17-14 

Mr. Buckson: I appreciate the comments by everybody involved. Steve, I had the 
privilege of meeting with your father-in-law. I was really wet behind the ears and 
this big 'ol guy said I want to meet with you and do lunch. I said I don't do lunch 
but you're welcome to stop by my house. So he stopped by and we had a little 
conversation on the back porch; it was about Farmington. Tonight was a tough 
night, but tonight was JV beyond measure compared to the whole Farmington 
deal. So it brought back some memories is what I will tell you. I certainly 
recognize your concerns and your thoughts of what you may want to do with your 
property if in fact this gets approved. I think that's something you have to make a 
decision on. I don't think that's something I can use to weigh in on what exactly 
we want to do. But I certainly respect your options. Mr. Paradee, I think you 
presented, in my opinion some logical arguments related to the approval. Once 
again I use this sort of, it's not something set in stone, but pronged approach that I 
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look at. Accessibility, we look at the location; I think it's in a favorable location. 
We look at connectivity to other areas that have been rezoned; well this is a, I 
guess a split zone, is that correct? There's a property adjacent to it? 

Ms. Keifer: There's a property adjacent to it. 

Mr. Buckson: So there's some significant connectivity to it. It's out of the growth 
zone, but I've already talked to you about my thoughts on the growth zone, it's not 
a death sentence. Finally, the infrastructure, I think the infrastructure can be 
there; the road itself, I would rely on the conditional use process that I think this 
Levy Court would have the ability to provide significant buffering similar to what 
we did in Farmington. If you go by there, if you can consider a transfer station 
and an asphalt place aesthetically pleasing that's about as good as it gets; I mean if 
you've ridden by there lately guys it's pretty impressive. So I do believe there's 
some things we can do. 

My Motion is to approve Ordinance LC 17-14 amending the Zoning Map 
Comprehensive Plan from AC Low Density to BG, which is General Business 
Highway Commercial. This is based upon Exhibit B, which is Public Hearing 
Testimony dated June 1st and the finding of facts related to A, B, C in your 
packet; seconded by Mr. Angel. 

Roll Call: 

Mr. Angel: Yes, based on the comments of Commissioner Buckson and the RPC 
approval. 

Mr. Buckson: Yes, based on comments stated. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Yes, based on the information provided. 

Mr. Sweeney: Yes, for all reasons stated. 

Mr. Banta: Based on the vote of the Regional Planning Commission, in favor, as 
well as I think all of us are people of integrity and I'm sure the project is going to 
go forward as prescribed by Mr. Paradee, I vote yes. 

Roll call reveals five (5) yeas; two (2) absent. Ordinance LC17-14 has been 
approved. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS CLOSED 

Old Business - None 

New Business 
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Mr. Banta: 
1. Appointment of Finance Committee Chair - Jim Hosfelt 

2. Introduction of Ordinance LC17-19, An Ordinance amending the Code 
of Kent County, State of Delaware, Volume I, Chapter 128- Fees, 128-44 
-Recorder of Deeds, to establish a Technology Fee for Public Hearing on 
Tuesday, July 11, 2017 at 7 P.M. 

3. Introduction of Ordinance LC17-20, An Ordinance amending The Code 
ofKent County, State of Delaware, Volume I, Chapter 128- Fees, 128-40 
-Clerk of the Peace, to establish a Recording Fee for Public Hearing on 
Tuesday, July 18,2017 at 7 P.M. 

Other Business- None 

Public Comments - None 

Commissioner Comments - None 

Motion to Adjourn was made by Mr. Sweeney; seconded by Mr. Angel; carried 
by roll call vote five (5) yeas; two (2) absent. 9:14p.m. 

Trish Brown 
Deputy Clerk of the Peace 
Kent County 


